
 1

MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

 
Commissioners’ Meeting 
April 22, 2021 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY  
**HELD VIA RECORDED VIRTUAL/TELECONFERENCE DUE TO COVID‐19** 

   
Chairman Rattner called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM.  Following the virtual Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag, announcement 
was made that adequate notice of this meeting had been provided for as defined by the “Open Public Meetings Act”. 

 
Members Present:  James Benson, Andrew Cangiano, Brian McNeilly, Melanie Michetti, Michael Pucilowski, Steven 

Rattner, Thomas Romano, Richard Schindelar, Joseph Schwab, Elmer Still, Jack Sylvester  
 
Members Absent:    Michael Grogan, Richard Schindelar 
 
Others Present:  Tom Carroll ‐ QPA, Pat Dwyer ‐ Esq., James Schilling ‐ MSA Director, Jilliam Martucci ‐ 

Administrative, Jim Wancho ‐ PE 
 
Attendance Roll Call: 

Mr. Benson  Present  Chairman Rattner  Present  
Mr. Cangiano  Present  Mr. Romano  Present  
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Present  Mr. Schwab   Present 
Mrs. Michetti  Present  Mr. Still  Present 
Mr. Pucilowski  Present  Mr. Sylvester  Present 

 

 



 2

 
 
Due to connectivity issues Chairman Rattner missed opening & closing the meeting to the public. 
 
The “Regular” meeting minutes of March 25, 2021 were Tabled until the May 27, 2021 MSA Board Meeting 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

Comments: 

 Commissioner Pucilowski noted that the March 25, 2021 meeting minutes were not included in the Final Agenda. 
o Commissioner Schwab suggested tabling the minutes.   
o Commissioner Still stated that he has the minutes, they just aren’t included in the Agenda asked if they needed 

to be part of the Agenda.  
o Commissioner Schwab & Mr. Schilling deferred to counsel, Mr. Dwyer agreed to table the minutes, as there is no 

deadline.  
 
The Financial Reports for 2020 was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. Romano   
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

 
Comments: 

 Chairman Rattner stated that he cannot figure out what happened with the Capital account that the MSA cannot 
pay bills, he stated that we have had bigger projects with less money on hand.   

o Chairman Rattner addressed Mr. Schilling and stated that when he has his meeting before actually closing on the 
loan itself and at that time NJIB provides various dates & timelines to follow, the state advises to submit voucher 
reimbursements immediately and the turnaround is 21 days. He followed up asking if the reimbursement was 
submitted on time.  

o Mr. Schilling responded that there were detailed email discussions with the Finance Committee which also 
included the Auditor.  Chairman Rattner interrupted and again asked if the requisition was submitted on time 
and Mr. Schilling responded that the detailed emails outline everything that was completed timely.  

o Chairman Rattner noted the Renewal & Replacement account balance as well as the balance from the quarterly 
transfer.  Mr. Schilling attempted to explain.   

o Commissioner Schwab strongly disagreed with Chairman Rattner.  He advised that the Capital Balance was 
approximately $559,000.00 bills totaling $680,000.00, he stated that he spent 2 days corresponding with the 
Auditor which is detailed in the emails, Tom Romano had input, Steve stayed silent.  On the advice of the 
Auditor, we should not go into Renewal & Replacement, this is very common for these things to happen.  Mr. 
Schwab stated that he disagrees strongly with Mr. Rattner.   

o Chairman Rattner again asked why we did not just use the remainder of the quarterly transfer funding.  
o Mr. Schwab stated there would still be a shortfall.  Mr. Schilling stated that was suggested however our Auditor 

suggested otherwise and the advice of our professionals was followed. 
o Mr. Schwab stated we were still short $22,064.83 and that the Auditor advised we will likely run into the same 

issue over the next few months and agreed that we followed the advice of our Professionals.   



 3

o Mr. Schwab & Mr. Rattner corresponded back & forth with regard to this matter… 
o Poor connectivity due to the virtual meeting.  
o Mr. Schwab stated that Mr. Rattner should have corresponded through the email discussion instead of waiting 

until the meeting and that this is what was decided by our Professionals. 
o Poor connectivity due to the virtual meeting.  
o Mr. Schilling stated that he brought this issue to the Finance Committees attention as well as the Auditor.  Mr. 

Rattner interrupted; the audio quality was again poor.  Mr. Schilling also verified that the application was not 
submitted late.  Mr. Schilling also noted that we are required to pay contractors within 30 days.  

o Chairman Rattner stated we do not have to wait for approval of the bill list to submit the requisition.  
o Mrs. Martucci, admin asked what would happen if the check isn’t approved by the board.  Mr. Rattner stated 

that we should review the NJIB website.  Mrs. Martucci, admin also advised that we can only submit one 
requisition at a time, we currently have 2 contractors submitting invoices.  Mr. Rattner again read terms from 
the NJIB website.  

o Mr. McNeilly interjected that we need a gavel for the meeting. 
o Mr. Schilling stated that he is very surprised that this conversation is so heated. Absolutely nothing was 

submitted late.  Mr. McNeilly stated to move it along. 

 Mr. Rattner asked why we are spending so much in propane, Mr. Still stated it’s been a cold winter.  Mr. Schilling 
advised that we have had multiple generators running for extended periods of time.  

o Poor connectivity due to the virtual meeting…Mr. Rattner speaking while Mr. Schilling was speaking.  
o Mr. Schilling advised that a large percentage of that was for one project. 
o Mr. Rattner stated that he doesn’t want to be short and have to scramble for money, he has previously brought 

up concerns stating “it looks like stolen money”. 
o Mr. Rattner stated that there have been big expenses and that they may not have even all been installed yet.  

 Mr. Schilling stated there seems to be a lot of animosity going around and that with regard to the 
aerators, they have all been installed and that it is detailed in his monthly report.  Mr. Rattner stated 
that we don’t have a lot of remaining money for the remainder of the year so if something breaks… 

o Mr. Still stated that each year in Netcong he incorporates a spending freeze for 3 months.  Mr. Rattner 
responded that we can’t go that way because we can’t allow expletive to flow onto the street.  

o Poor connectivity due to the virtual meeting.  
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

Financial Report – 2020 

 

 
 
 



 5

 



 6

 



 7

 
 
 

 



 8

 
 

 
 



 9

The Financial Reports for 2021 was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. Romano   
Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

 
Comments: 

 N/A 
 

Financial Report – 2021 

 



 10

 



 11

 
 



 12

 

 
 
 



 13

 



 14

The Pending Vouchers through April 15, 2021 were approved for payment on a motion offered by Mr. Schwab, seconded by Mr. 
Romano and the affirmative roll call vote of members present. Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

Comments:  

   Mr. Schwab addressed Mr. Schilling regarding the Capital account, last correspondence was an email received from 
Mrs. Martucci, admin email received April 16, 2021 at 2:11pm if that could be forwarded to the board.  

 Mr. Schwab stated that we would have to approve Resolution 20‐21 prior to the pending vouchers being approved 
o Poor connectivity  
o Mr. Schwab moved Resolution 20‐21; Mr. Romano offered a second.  
o Mr. Sylvester asked why we were doing resolutions now, Mr. Rattner reiterated that we needed that Resolution 

20‐21 passed prior to pending voucher approval.  
o Mr. Sylvester stated that this is a perfect example as to why we need to end these zoom meetings & be back in 

the building for in person meetings, Mr. Schwab agreed.  Mr. Still stated that this is getting out of control, we 
are spending more money than we can see.   

o Mr. Schwab replied that there is a shortfall in cash flow due to two projects going on.  Mr. Still interrupted, Mr. 
Schwab asked to finish speaking and stated to that the email will be sent out tomorrow and should be reviewed.  
There are some quirky rules that they (Ibank) have.  Mr. Schwab again stated that our accountant assured him 
this is very common. 

o Mr. Still stated that we are not a big authority so we shouldn’t be spending this kind of money if we can’t afford 
it.  Mr. Schwab responded that this is part of the loans, Mr. Still stated that we asked for $3,000,000.00 in loans 
and we are spending it faster than we can get it, Mr. Schwab was responding… 

o Poor connectivity 
o Mr. Schwab stated that Resolution 20‐21 is a temporary solution due to two projects running concurrently while 

we are waiting on reimbursement, he stated that we have plenty of money.  Mr. Sylvester stated the we 
obviously don’t.  Mr. Schwab responded that this is a temporary transfer that had to be done this way for legal 
reasons, that is why the resolution was needed to be within the law.  
 Poor connectivity 
 Mr. Still stated that this is turning into bull‐expletive now.  
 Mr. McNeilly asked Mr. Schwab if at a future meeting we anticipate a reimbursement to the operating.  

Mr. Schwab advised yes that we are just awaiting on reimbursement from the Ibank, again stated that 
you cannot have more than one requisition at a time, we are currently waiting on $375,000.00 
reimbursement, as soon as this is approved, we can submit the next.  

 Poor connectivity 
 Mrs. Martucci, admin confirmed that she would file the over $600,000.00 reimbursement as soon as the 

current one was completed.  
o Mr. McNeilly asked for confirmation that within 6‐12 month cycle the transfer would be zeroed out.  Mr. Schwab 

agreed.  Poor connectivity … 
o Mr. McNeilly stated that we are making concrete steps on approved projects, cleared by finance & approved by 

the entire board, this is not an over spending issue.  Mr. still stated that is his opinion.  Mr. Rattner stated that 
all we had was a timing issue. Mr. Still stated that there are too many projects going on at once.  Mr. Rattner 
said no it was just timing.   
 Multiple people speaking – INAUDIBLE 
 Mr. Still asked if we will have the same issue next month, Mr. Schwab stated hopefully not.  

o Mr. Schwab stated that as far as the comment that we were never through this before is because perhaps things 
were not being done by the law, we have a different set of professionals now that keep a very close eye on 
things and that maybe it happened before and the MSA wasn’t aware.  
 Mr. Sylvester asked maybe it did happen before? Or it did happen? 



 15

 Mr. Schwab said it may have happened 15‐20 years ago.  At this point we have a very good set of 
professionals…. Mr. Sylvester stated don’t say it may have or may not have!  He stated that he is 
beginning to agree with Elmer (Still) that we have too many projects going on and that as Chairman 
Rattner stated we knew we were going to run into this problem.   

 Mr. Rattner stated that the plant must continue to run safely, however we need to do cash planning, yes 
there are many balls in the air however we have engineers involved as well as James (Schilling) to run 
the plant.  The board agreed to move forward with these projects ….  Poor connectivity …. His concern is 
the cash flow not the projects that were already approved.  The contractors have their own payroll to 
cover & such, they did the work, they need to get paid. 

 Mr. Schwab deferred to Tom Carroll, QPA to explain the prompt payment law.  

 Mr. Carroll, QPA advised that in 2006 the State of NJ required that payments to contractors be 
made on a timely manner.  MSA is setup that the governing body is required to approve 
payments, however there are certain timeframes that payments be made within 30 days... Poor 
connectivity… this was implemented because contractors were waiting up to 180 days to be 
reimbursed.  The MSA is doing exactly what municipal entities do regularly based on cash flow … 
Poor connectivity … it is a bucket issue where you borrow from the operating account and lend 
to capital until reimbursement is received.  He added that we should also keep in mind that 
everyone at the State of NJ is still working from home (due to COVID‐19).  It is not unusual at all 
to do something like this.   

o Mr. Sylvester stated that everyone understands what is being done, the underlying issue 
that is continually being brought up is the two major projects ongoing at the same time 
& that’s something to consider going forward and in the future however something to 
consider, we agreed & voted on these projects.  

o Mr. Sylvester stated that we will be doing this tap dance for a while. Mr. Schwab replied 
that he hoped not.  

o Mr. Rattner stated that we need to move the $200,000.00 immediately.  Mr. Schilling 
replied that was his recommendation.  Mr. Schwab stated that this is already in the 
email correspondence that will be forwarded tomorrow.  

o Mr. Sylvester stated to move forward.  

 Mr. Schwab moved to approve pending vouchers, Mr. Romano second. 

 Mr. Pucilowski asked if the IT company was on the pending vouchers list?    
o Mrs. Martucci advised yes.  Mr. Pucilowski suggested holding payment due to the MSA not having phones for 

several weeks.  Mrs. Martucci advised that this is not an IT issue, it actually an Altice (internet) issue as they 
prematurely ported our phone lines before we even had adequate telephone equipment.   

o Mr. McNeilly asked if Altice is our phone provider.  Mrs. Martucci advised that IT was on site today setting up 
our telephone system, the supplier will be Ring Central, we will only carry Altice for internet services  

o Mr. Benson asked how long the process will take? Mrs. Martucci responded hopefully only a few days. 

 Mr. Still asked if all the laptops were now working, Mrs. Martucci clarified that he meant the tablets and advised yes that 
his has been in the conference room for some time now.  
 

  
 



 16

 



 17

 
 



 18

The following correspondence for the month of March, 2021 was received and filed on a motion offered by Mr. Pucilowski, 
seconded by Mrs. Michetti. All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments:  

 N/A 
 
Monthly Reports: 
The Director's Report, and Maintenance and Repairs Report, for the month of April, 2021 and Flow Data for March, 2021 was 
accepted on a motion offered by Mr. McNeilly and seconded by Mr. Cangiano. All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Pucilowski asked Mr. Schilling to schedule an in‐person Engineering Committee meeting at the MSA.  

 Mr. Rattner advised Lake Musconetcong was completing some of the pre survey & testing which revealed a 
large uptick in turbidity (dirty water) which Lake Hopatcong was also having a major problem, it was traced back 
to the work done at the State Park.  If anything is noticed in the river it may be from that.  

 Mr. Rattner stated that there were some interesting flows that he hasn’t been able to figure out, however he did 
check the rain gauges very closely, it appeared during dry periods that the flow went up.  

o Mr. Schilling stated that the flows remained elevated well after the rain fall.  
 

The Engineer’s Report for the month of April, 2021 was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Sylvester, seconded by Mrs. 
Michetti.  All in Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Wancho, PE stated that two of the Tertiary filters were scheduled to be started this week and that was done 
successfully, there is a slight glitch with the water dilution system that is being looked into, training also 
conducted.  

 Mr. Wancho, PE also advised that on Contract 300, 35 cubic yards of concrete was poured.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 19

New Business: 
Resolution No. 21‐20 was tabled until after Engineer Committee Review meeting 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

Comments: 

 Mr. Schilling stated there was a lot of information sent to the board regarding this Resolution 
o Poor connectivity  

 Mr. Pucilowski recommended postponing this resolution until the next meeting, he would like to have the 
Engineering Committee Meeting before approval.  

o Mr. Schilling stated that the Aerators are producing a tremendous impact  
o He also advised that he supplied correspondence from the AEA regarding wastewater regulations from 

across the state. 

 Mr. Schilling also advised that within his report he outlines comments & concerns with regard to Odor Control & 
Complaints through the DEP.  

o Mr. Pucilowski advised that he believes this resolution should be postponed.  

 Mr. Rattner asked for a straw vote on how many people would like to postpone. (see above) 
 
Resolution No. 21‐21 was offered on a motion by Mr. Schwab seconded by Mr. Romano and the affirmative roll call vote of 
members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Yes  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes  
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Yes  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

   
*See attached resolution 
   
Comments: 

 See above for notes & approval 
 
New Business: 
  Memo: Stanhope Allocation 

Comments: 

 Mr. Schilling stated that Stanhope submitted documentation from Stanhope regarding an allocation transfer. 

 Mr. Rattner asked counsel if this is something we need to take action on tonight. 
o Mr. Dwyer, Esq. advised that he spoke with Mr. McNeilly regarding this matter and that he recommends 

notice being given to member municipality, he suggests this be issued by the MSA.  
o Mr. McNeilly advised that this is on the agenda for Tuesday’s night council meeting for the Mayor’s 

stamp. 
o Mr. Rattner asked what the transfer amount is?  Mr. McNeilly advised 4300 gallons. 
o Mr. Dwyer advised a letter be sent to all member towns along with a copy of the agreement.  
o Mr. Still asked if this was the same amount they gave back, Mr. Rattner advised that they never signed 

the agreement.  
o Mr. McNeilly stated that Byram has a circumstance because they do EDUs as opposed to by the gallon, 

they get jammed up because they can’t be used the same way Stanhope, Netcong.  Mr. McNeilly added 
that last time it was 1450.  

o Mr. McNeilly advised that later in the process MSA would take action, around step 6.  
o Mr. Dwyer again advised to send a copy of the letter to each town.  



 20

o Mr. McNeilly asked if the municipalities have to take any action or send back confirmation.  Mr. Dwyer 
advise no action required until the Resolutions are passed.  

 
Old Business: 

 None 
Comments: 

 Mr. Rattner asked if there was still a need for Closed Session for Permit Discussion or was that handled  

 Mr. Dwyer advised there is a conference with the judge next Friday.  

 Mr. Dwyer, Esq. stated that he wasn’t clear if the permit discussion had to do with what is going on with the Air 
Permit, he deferred to Mr. Wancho, PE 

o Mr. Wancho, PE advised that he wasn’t sure what was being asked 
o Mr. Dwyer, Esq. stated that he thought there were issues with the DEP granting the Air Permit.  
o Mr. Wancho, PE advised that this had to do with an Odor Control Plan modification and that this should 

have been requested prior to the permit being finalized, there is a draft plan that is being worked on 
currently.   

 
Closed Session: 

 None 
 
Adjournment: 

Motion made by Mr. Still, seconded by Mrs. Michetti and the All in Favor Vote of members present, Chairman Rattner 
adjourned the meeting at 8:41 pm. 

Mr. Benson  Aye  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Aye  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted: 
Jilliam Martucci ‐ Administrative Assistant 

 



 21

 

 



 22

 
 
 
 


